The audio recording for this meeting is available on the South Dakota Boards and Commissions Portal at http://boardsandcommissions.sd.gov/Meetings.aspx?BoardID=67

Minutes of the
Board of Minerals and Environment
Matthew Environmental Education and Training Center
523 East Capitol Avenue
Pierre, South Dakota

May 15, 2019 10:00 a.m. CT

<u>CALL TO ORDER</u>: The meeting was called to order by Chairman Rex Hagg. The roll was called, and a quorum was present.

Chairman Hagg appointed Dennis Landguth as secretary pro tem.

Chairman Hagg announced that the meeting was streaming live on SD.net, a service of South Dakota Public Broadcasting.

<u>BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT</u>: Rex Hagg, Glenn Blumhardt, Doyle Karpen, Dennis Landguth, Daryl Englund, and Jessica Peterson. John Scheetz participated via telephone.

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Gregg Greenfield and Bob Morris.

OTHERS PRESENT: See attached attendance sheet.

<u>APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM APRIL 18, 2019, MEETING</u>: Motion by Karpen, seconded by Blumhardt, to approve the minutes from the April 18, 2019, Board of Minerals and Environment meeting. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried unanimously.

MINING ISSUES

<u>Consent Calendar</u>: Prior to the meeting, the board received a table listing the department recommendations for transfers of liability (see attachment).

Motion by Landguth, seconded by Englund, to accept the department recommendations for transfers of liability, as shown on the consent calendar. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried unanimously.

Acceptance of Financial Assurance Increase for Wharf Resources (USA), Inc., Permits 356, 464, and 476: Eric Holm presented an adjustment of the financial assurance amount for Wharf Resources. This financial assurance, also known as the cyanide spill bond, is required under SDCL 45-6B-20.1 and covers costs to the state for responding to and remediating accidental releases of cyanide and other leaching agents at the Wharf mine site. The financial assurance is

in addition to Wharf Resources' \$37.4 million reclamation bond and \$26.8 million post closure bond.

The department adjusted the financial assurance for inflation and calculated a revised amount of \$689,300, which is a \$20,100 increase from the 2018 update.

To cover the increase, Wharf Resources submitted a rider to the Aspen American bond that currently serves as financial assurance, increasing the bond amount to \$689,300. Ratings for Aspen American Insurance Company from AM Best, Standard and Poor's, and Moody's are excellent, strong, and upper medium quality, respectively. The AM Best outlook was recently upgraded from under review to stable. The Standard and Poor's and Moody's outlooks remain negative; however, the merger with Apollo Global Management was completed on February 15, 2019, so the outlooks may not change until the end of this year.

The department recommended that the board accept the rider to Bond No. SU27832, Aspen American Insurance Company, increasing the financial assurance bond to \$689,300.

Mr. Scheetz asked if Wharf has pollution prevention insurance in addition to this bond. Matt Zietlow, Wharf Resources, stated that Wharf has a standard property protection policy through their parent company, Coeur Mining, which is typical of any other property ownership; it is not specific to pollution protection.

Motion by Blumhardt, seconded by Karpen, to accept the rider to Bond No. SU27832, Aspen American Insurance Company, increasing the financial assurance bond by \$20,100 to \$689,300 for Wharf Resources (USA), Inc., Permits 356, 464, and 476. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried unanimously.

Annual Update of Preliminary List of Special, Exceptional, Critical, or Unique Lands: Mr. Holm reported that under ARSD 74:29:10:19, the board is required to annually hold a hearing to consider any petitions received to nominate lands to the Preliminary List of Special, Exceptional, Critical, or Unique Lands.

In accordance with ARSD 74:29:10:17(4), DENR publishes an annual notice to solicit petitions to add areas to the preliminary list. The notice for 2019 was published on January 24, 2019, in the Capitol Journal, Sioux Falls Argus Leader, Black Hills Pioneer, and Rapid City Journal. Affidavits of publication were received from all newspapers and are on file at the department.

The deadline for submittal of petitions to nominate areas to preliminary list was May 1, 2019, and no nominating petitions were received.

Mr. Holm noted that no board action was required.

Chairman Hagg asked Mr. Holm to explain the process for placing lands on the preliminary list.

Mr. Holm stated that prior to submittal of any large- or small-scale mine permit application, the operator is required to submit a notice of intent to the department to determine whether or not the

lands included in the proposed mining operation constitute special, exceptional, critical, or unique lands. Within 60 days, the department must determine whether the lands described in the notice of intent are eligible for inclusion on the preliminary list of special, exceptional, critical, or unique lands. Any citizen, organization, or agency may nominate lands described in a notice of intent to operate for inclusion on the preliminary list by submitting a nominating petition to the department and to the operator within 60 days following the date of publication of the public notice. If any petitions are received, the board would hold a public hearing to determine whether the nominated lands would be placed on the preliminary list. The board determines whether the lands are finally designated as special, exceptional, critical, or unique when a mining permit application that includes lands on the preliminary list is filed and the board holds a hearing.

REQUEST PERMISSION TO ADVERTISE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AMENDMENTS TO ARSD 74:28, HAZARDOUS WASTE: Carrie Jacobson, DENR Waste Management program, requested permission to advertise for a public hearing to consider amendments to 74:28, hazardous waste rules.

The department intends to publish the public notice in the eleven daily papers. The public notice will also be mailed to individuals and interested parties on the department's mailing list. The draft rules will be available on the department's website.

Outreach to provide an overview of the proposed rules and to seek input is scheduled via the Digital Dakota Network on June 18, 2019. Interested parties will also be able to contact the department directly to obtain copies and send comments by mail. The public has 45 days to provide written comments on the proposed rules.

The department anticipates the public hearing will be held on July 18; therefore, the public notice will be sent for publishing on or before May 31. A copy of the draft public notice was included in the board packet.

The amendments reflect changes that occurred in the federal hazardous waste regulations from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018, as well as final rules published in the Federal Register on November 30, 2018 (Airbags rule) and February 22, 2019 (Pharmaceutical Waste/P075 listing update).

Mr. Scheetz asked when the final rules would be in effect for enforcement purposes. Ms. Jacobson stated that after the public comment period is over and the board makes a decision on the amendments on July 18, 2019, the final rules will be presented to the Interim Rules Committee for approval at their August meeting. After approval by the Interim Rules Committee, the final rules will be submitted to the Secretary of State. Staff anticipates the final rules will become effective in September 2019.

Motion by Englund, seconded by Peterson, to authorize the department to advertise for a public hearing to consider amendments to ARSD 74:28 at the July 18, 2019, Board of Minerals and Environment meeting. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried unanimously.

<u>ORAL MINING REPORTS</u>: The annual large-scale gold mine oral reports were presented to the board by representatives of LAC Minerals, Homestake Mining Company, Wharf Resources, VMC, LLC, and DENR for the Gilt Edge Superfund Site. The mine operators reported on 2018 water treatment, production, and reclamation activities and discussed plans for 2019. The annual oral mining presentations are required by statute.

<u>LAC Minerals and Homestake Mining Company</u>: Mark Tieszen updated the board on reclamation activities and geotechnical surveys performed in 2018. He answered questions from the board regarding water treatment and reclamation.

<u>Wharf Resources</u>: Matt Zietlow updated the board on the re-route of its main haul road to accommodate future mining plans, and he provided an overview of future pad offload schedules. He answered questions from the board regarding current mining activities and reclamation.

<u>VMC, LLC</u>: Don Valentine participated via telephone conference call. He reported that no mining activities occurred at the proposed operation during 2018; however, there is a possibility that VMC, LLC will talk to the Lawrence County Commissioners about reinstating their Conditional Use Permit.

<u>Gilt Edge Superfund Site:</u> Roberta Hudson, Minerals and Mining Program, presented the annual update on remediation and reclamation activities at the Gilt Edge Superfund Site including backfilling and grading work completed on the Sunday and Dakota Maid pits. She also discussed Agnico Eagle's work to define contaminant sources and update facilities at the site.

Ms. Hudson answered questions from the board regarding monitoring water levels, present and future water treatment, and the work Agnico Eagle is doing.

GRIZZLY GULCH TAILINGS DAM: During the March 21, 2019 meeting the board requested information on bonding for the Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam and on the design and monitoring of the facility.

Mr. Holm discussed the history of how Grizzly Gulch fits into the Homestake permitting and the department and board's authority for bonding.

SDCL 45-6A was the first mine reclamation law enacted in 1971. Underground mining and surface effects from underground mining were not regulated under this law. The Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam was constructed from 1976 to 1977, and it was not regulated because of the underground mining exemption.

In 1980, the South Dakota Legislature amended SDCL 45-6A to allow the state to permit and regulate underground mining. The South Dakota Conservation Commission, which was the predecessor to the Board of Minerals and Environment, had a question as to whether the amended law applied to any existing underground mines in operation before July 1, 1980. The Attorney General's Office issued a legal opinion stating that the amendment did not apply to underground mines that existed prior to July 1, 1980.

The current law, SDCL 45-6B, was enacted in 1982 and replaced SDCL 45-6A. SDCL 45-6B-9 exempted underground mines and surface effects from undergrounds mines that were in operation prior to July 1, 1980. The exemption was applied to the Homestake underground mine and the surface effects, such as the Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam, the Homestake Mill, the Ross and Yates shafts, and the Yates waste rock depository. Homestake was interested in resuming surface mining in the Open Cut and in 1982 large-scale mine permit 332 was issued to Homestake for the resumption of surface mining. Large-scale mine permit 456 was issued to Homestake in 1992 for an expansion of the Open Cut. The Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam was not included under these permits due to the exemption under SDCL 45-6B-9.

Mr. Holm showed a map with the location of mine permits 332 and 456. The Minerals and Mining Program has regulatory authority for areas only within the boundaries of permits 332 and 456. Mr. Holm pointed out the location of the Homestake mill, which has been reclaimed, the Ross and Yates shafts, the Yates waste rock depository, which has been reclaimed, and the Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam.

Mr. Holm discussed the following codified laws:

SDCL 45-6B-20 states that the board shall cause an inspection to be made of the proposed mine site. Based upon this inspection, the criteria established in SDCL 45-6B-21, and the submitted reclamation plan, the board shall set the level of the surety necessary to guarantee the costs of reclamation of affected public and private lands. The surety shall be filed or deposited with the board before the issuance of the mining permit in such form as required by the board.

SDCL 45-6B-27 states that the penalty of the surety shall from time to time be increased or reduced by the Board of Minerals and Environment so that the bond covers the cost of reclamation which would accrue to the state, if the state were required to reclaim the affected areas within the permit or in accordance with the number of acres to which the bond is no longer operative because of the operator's withdrawal of acreage or by reason of the operator's performance of his or her obligations subsequent to the issuance of the permit.

SDCL 45-6B-1 states, in part, that for each mining operation requiring a post closure plan, the operator shall begin post closure care immediately following the release of reclamation surety and continue post closure care for thirty years. The board may modify the permit to reduce the length of the post closure care period at any time after reclamation surety release if a reduced period ensures compliance with all applicable performance standards. The board may modify the permit to extend the period beyond thirty years if necessary to ensure compliance with all applicable performance standards or design and operating criteria.

SDCL 34A-10-2.1 states, in part, that any person making application to the Water Management Board or the Board of Minerals and Environment for a permit, a license, or an extension, amendment, or renewal of an existing permit or license, which authorizes activity that could result in a significant risk of pollution, contamination, or degradation of the environment and that is not covered by a performance or damage bond or other financial assurance instrument, may be required, as a condition of the permit, to provide financial assurance guaranteeing the

performance of corrective actions to contain, mitigate, and remediate all pollution, contamination, or degradation which may be caused by the activity.

Mr. Holm explained that staff consulted with Steve Blair, Assistant Attorney General, regarding the board's authority for bonding. Mr. Blair agreed with staff's conclusion that financial assurance for the Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam cannot be required because the facility is exempt from permitting, reclamation, and bonding requirements in accordance with SDCL 45-6B-9, and under SDCL 45-6B and SDCL 34A-10-2.1, DENR and the board can only require financial assurance for a mine facility covered under a mine permit.

Mr. Holm noted that at the March meeting he indicated to the board that the department may hold funds tied to the Grizzly Gulch Tailings Dam. Mr. Holm clarified that the department does not hold such funds.

Mr. Scheetz stated he understands that initially the dam was not issued a permit because material from underground mining was being sent to that facility exclusively, but with the issuing of permits 332 and 456, there were tailings from that surface mining activity that went to Grizzly Gulch Dam. He asked if sending tailings from the surface mining operation to Grizzly Gulch Dam connected Grizzly Gulch to the requirements of permits 332 and 456.

Mr. Holm answered that he did not work at DENR at the time permit 332 was issued, but activities approved under permit 456 were considered part of the underground operation. Since the tailings were coming from the underground operation, the dam was was not covered under the permit.

Mr. Scheetz stated that quite a bit of the tailings have come from the Open Cut mining operation. He said the two issues are whether a bond is necessary and whether the board can legally require a bond. Mr. Scheetz said he believes that since tailings were brought in from surface mining activity, the dam should have been included in the permit.

Mr. Holm said the board and department have regulatory authority over only the areas within the boundaries of the mine permits.

Mr. Scheetz asked the department to further investigate what regulatory authority the state has over the Grizzly Gulch impoundment based on past disposal of surface tailings mining under permit 456.

Mr. Tieszen discussed regulatory oversight at the Grizzly Gulch Tailings facility, permitting and construction of the dam, the elevation and water levels of the dam, the tailings dam design, the storm water diversion canal, post closure operations and performance, maintenance, beach reclamation, pore pressure and water level monitoring, bimonthly and monthly tailings impoundment inspections, and expert third party tailings impoundment reviews performed by Matich and Morgenstern. He also showed several photos of the dam and areas around the dam.

Mr. Landguth stated that his concerns regarding the safety factors of the dam were addressed by Mr. Tieszen's presentation.

Mr. Tieszen answered questions from Mr. Englund regarding the upstream drainage and the diversion canal.

Mr. Scheetz stated that even though there is a low probability of failure, there is a high consequence if the dam does fail. He said complete failure of that dam would basically bury the city of Deadwood under tailings. The second issue that needs to be considered is water quality in the dam and how that potentially affects the bond. If the tailings go acid, there could be potential major issues.

Chairman Hagg asked if there are currently any concerns regarding the water quality. Mr. Tieszen stated that there are low levels of ammonia and cyanide in the water, but the concentrations of these parameters are so low that they do not constitute water quality concerns at this time. The water that is being collected at the toe of the facility and from the seepage collection has higher TDS and slightly higher metals. That water is pumped to the supernatant pond to get treatment within the pond before it is sent to the SD Science and Tech Authority. By biological and solar means there is some passive treatment within that facility.

Mr. Scheetz said there are quite a few metals in the dam, and he asked if an evaluation has been done of the fluctuating water table or the probability of those metals consuming the carbonate, and the factors that could potentially change the pH and the whole pond could go acid.

Mr. Tieszen stated that he is unaware of any formal evaluation of the potential for acid generation at Grizzly Gulch. Based on the lack of acid generation associated with other Homestake waste rock, there's no indication Grizzly Gulch will ever generate acid. If it were to go acid or if there would be some other issue, then there are other water treatment techniques that can be used for that.

Chairman Hagg asked if Homestake is submitting annual reports to DENR so it is monitored on an annual basis, at a minimum. Mr. Tieszen stated that Homestake submits a report to DENR on the ground water quality of the wells around the facility, and water quality results from the supernatant pond itself are submitted to Mr. Scheetz at the SD Science and Tech Authority on a monthly basis.

Mr. Scheetz stated that Mr. Tieszen did a good job showing how safe the dam is, but due diligence requires the board to do this review based on the fact that there have been some significant failures in Brazil, and it requires the board to make sure that everyone is doing their job.

Chairman Hagg said Mr. Tieszen's presentation was very informative and well done. He stated that Homestake needs to continue monitoring the water for any activity that would suggest a problem.

<u>SPYGLASS CEDAR CREEK, LP'S REVOKED PERMITS – STATUS OF SPYGLASS</u> WELLS, SUMMARY OF ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS FOR ADDRESSING UNPLUGGED

<u>WELLS</u>: Chairman Hagg asked if anyone in attendance would like to make comments regarding this matter.

Kathy Glines, Harding County Auditor, stated that she and Melissa Breding, Harding County Treasurer, were attending the meeting to observe.

Rich Williams, Deputy Attorney General, stated that on May 13, 2019, pursuant to the board's direction, the Department of Environment and Natural Resources filed a complaint against Spyglass Cedar Creek, LP, March Kimmel in his capacity as general partner of Spyglass Cedar Creek, and Kevin Sellers in his capacity as general partner of Spyglass Cedar Creek. Mr. Kimmel and Mr. Sellers were included in the complaint because, under Texas law, general partners in a Limited Partnership (LP) are jointly and severally liable for the debts and obligations of the LP.

The complaint lists the violations, many of which were included in the Notice of Violation issued by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources on July 10, 2018, and the Petition to Revoke Drillings Permits and Petition for Forfeiture of Surety issued by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources on July 12, 2018. The complaint asked for injunctive relief in the form of an order requiring Spyglass, March Kimmel, and Kevin Sellers to perform the necessary acts and remediation to come into compliance with the laws and a requirement that Spyglass post a good and sufficient surety in the amount necessary to cover the performance of the related acts and remediation necessary for Spyglass' compliance with SDCL 45-9 and the administrative rules promulgated thereunder. The state also requested that Spyglass, March Kimmel, and Kevin Sellers be held jointly and severally liable for the civil penalties in the entire amount of \$15,494,000. A list of violations is included with the complaint as Exhibit F.

Chairman Hagg asked if the complaint seeks recovery of the \$20,000 Plugging and Performance Bond that Kevin Sellers cashed in October 2015.

Mr. Williams said that is part of the prayer for relief.

Chairman Hagg stated that at the March 21, 2019 meeting the department offered four different options for the proposed initial reclamation plan for the 40 former Spyglass gas wells. He noted that the board had talked about using the Quartz forfeited bond funds.

Chairman Hagg asked how the funds for bond forfeitures, fines, and penalties are separated for state accounting purposes. He said if all the forfeitures, fines, and penalties go to one fund, then money could be used on different projects. He also asked if this is a subject that needs to be addressed by the Legislature or it is something the board and department has authority over without going to the Legislature.

Mr. Williams stated that Quartz was required to provide a \$20,000 statewide Plugging and Performance Bond and an additional \$110,000 surety bond under Chapter 45-9. The initial Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law from the Board of Minerals and Environment in revoking the bond indicated that it was being done pursuant to Chapter 45. When the board adopted the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law regarding Woodford Construction

Company, Inc.'s petition for partial release of the surety, there was a switch citing Chapter 34A-10-2.2 and 34A-10-2.3. Those statutes have a different guidance for how to use the bond. It appears to be more site-specific with regard to the use of that money, whereas Chapter 45-9 really gives no direction on the use of the money.

Mr. Williams stated that without knowing what the board thought regarding how much of the bond was allocated to Chapter 45-9 and how much was allocated to Chapter 34A-10, it is hard to say upon what statute the findings were approved. Under the Mined Land Reclamation Fund, there is another statute, 45-6B-69, that directs the placement of those funds. Both 45-6B-69 and 34A-10 seem to have site-specific focus, but 45-9 does not have site-specific focus. Mr. Williams said in reading the statutes, it is not clear where the money would have to go. There is no real direction in 45-9 or 34A-10 on where the funds go. The Environment and Natural Resources Fee Fund was established in Chapter 1-40-30 for certain funds, but it does not include the surety money.

Mr. Williams said he is not sure there is a whole lot of guidance as to where the forfeited surety funds should go. If the board is not comfortable using it, going to the Legislature may be the next step in seeking clarification. If the board is comfortable, then it can move forward depending on how it is determined whether or not those funds are 45-9 funds or whether they are 34A-10 funds, or whether they fall under some other statute.

Chairman Hagg asked where the forfeited surety bond money is being kept at this time.

Mike Lees, Administrator of the Minerals and Mining Program, stated that part of the problem with this particular issue is that there have never been oil and gas bonds forfeited within the recent past other than the Quartz bond and the Spyglass bond. There are no rules in place specifically outlining where the funds for oil and gas surety forfeitures go. The \$130,000 Quartz bond was "parked" in the Mined Land Reclamation Fund because there is no specific fund set up for oil and gas surety forfeitures.

Chairman Hagg asked where the money collected for a penalty is deposited.

Mr. Williams stated that Chapter 1-40-30 established the Environment and Natural Resources Fee Fund which consists of all fees imposed pursuant to Titles 34A, 45, 46, and 46A, and chapters 1-40, 10-39B, and 34-44 and legislative appropriations, federal grants, gifts, and civil penalties. The fund is maintained administered by the department.

Chairman Hagg asked if that fund has money in it that could be considered. Mr. Williams said he does not know the amount of money available in the Environment and Natural Resources Fee Fund.

Chairman Hagg said the board should establish a plan to seek funding. He questioned whether the board should go to the Legislature.

Mr. Landguth said he is frustrated that this been going for so long. He said it has always been his impression that the forfeited Ouartz surety would be used for oil and gas related projects. He

suggested the board find a way to move ahead. Mr. Landguth said he believes the board can let the Legislature know what the board members think should be done.

Chairman Hagg agreed the board should propose a directive to the Legislature letting them know what should be done, but the question is whether the board needs the Legislature's blessing to use the money.

Mr. Karpen stated he believes a bond for a specific site should be designated only for that specific site.

Responding to a question from Chairman Hagg, Mr. Williams reiterated that at the time the permit was issued, the board required Quartz to submit the \$20,000 statewide bond plus \$110,000. This was done under SDCL 45-9.

Mr. Lees stated that when the department requested revocation of the \$130,000 Quartz surety bond, the department's justification was not that the money was needed to address reclamation needs at the Quartz site, because the upper portion of the well was permanently plugged. Nobody could get to the lower portion of the well, and there is no way it can be plugged with \$130,000. Mr. Lees said the department's reasoning at the time was to revoke the bond because it was a Plugging and Performance bond and Quartz failed to perform according to the conditions of their permit.

Mr. Landguth stated that the testimony the board heard from the professionals during the Quartz hearing told the board that the probability of the state having to do anything on that site was very low.

Chairman Hagg asked for comments from the representative of Harding County.

Kathy Glines stated that the county and the school want their delinquent taxes, the landowners want the surface restored, and the mineral owners want the minerals produced. Ms. Glines said she respects what the board is trying to do. Bills were presented to the Legislature in 2019 to try to get money to take care of this well situation, and the bills all died. One of the surface owners presented tremendous testimony on the bill to get \$1,000,000 allocated for this project and it didn't go anywhere. Ms. Glines said Harding County officials are frustrated, and just wanted the board to know that they are paying attention.

Chairman Hagg said he appreciates Harding County representatives coming to the board meeting and offering comments. It is important, especially for the landowners who usually have good luck with the Legislature on many things for their protection, but we also need to be aware that there is a three-part formula. Spyglass was trying to develop the minerals in the state. The landowners have their own leases and they have legal rights under the leases that they need to pursue, and if they are not pursuing those rights, it is hard for the board to say that they will pursue those rights for them because that is not the board's job. The wells need to be plugged, and it is the board's duty to see that they get plugged, and that is what the bond is for.

Chairman Hagg said he believes all the board can do is offer a plan with or without funding.

Mr. Williams stated that the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order signed by Hearing Chairman Morris on March 16, 2017, cite Chapter 45-9 regarding forfeiture of the surety.

Mr. Karpen said he is concerned the board makes the right decision because it will be setting a precedent with this decision.

Mr. Blumhardt stated that he is also concerned with the long-term precedence the board will be setting.

Chairman Hagg suggested the board wait to adopt a plan until after Mr. Kimmel and Mr. Sellers answer the complaint filed by the state.

Mr. Englund said he would like to understand more about Chapter 45-9-15 and 34A-10-2.2 and 34A-10-2.3. Mr. Williams again explained these statutes.

Chairman Hagg suggested the board defer the decision on this matter to the July 18, 2019, meeting.

Motion by Englund, seconded by Peterson, to defer board action on this matter until the July 18, 2019, Board of Minerals and Environment meeting. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried with Blumhardt, Englund, Karpen, Peterson, and Hagg voting yes. Landguth and Scheetz voted no.

<u>PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD</u>: Dr. Lilias Jarding, Rapid City, commented that the board should remember the discomfort it felt over the period of time dealing with its last issue as the board thinks about permitting conditions and bonding for future mining projects.

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting is July 18, 2019, in Pierre.

<u>ADJOURN</u>: Motion by Landguth, seconded by Karpen, to adjourn the meeting. A roll call vote was taken, and the motion carried unanimously.

Secretary	Date	Witness	Date

Consent Calendar South Dakota Board of Minerals & Environment

					May 15, 2019
<u>License Holder</u>	<u>License No.</u>	Site No.	Surety Amount	Surety Company or Bank	DENR Recommendation
Transfers of Liability:					
McLaughlin & Schulz, Inc. Marshall, MN	83-5		\$20,000	Merchants Bonding Company	Transfer liability.
Maishail, Mi		5004	N1/2 NE1/4 Section County	n 33; T117N-R52W, Codington	
Transfer to:			·		
J & J Earth Works, Inc. Milbank, SD	17-1017		\$20,000	Western Surety Company	
Van Zee Gravel & Construction	83-223		\$8,000	Bank of the West, Platte	Transfer liability.
Platte, SD		223001	SE1/4 SW1/4 Secti County	on 31; T101N-R65W, Aurora	
Transfer to:					
Ringling Gravel &	19-1048		\$3,500	First Dakota National Bank,	
Construction LLC Platte, SD				Chamberlain	

May 2019 Consent.doc

South Dakota Board of Minerals & Environment

				May 15, 2019
Permit Holder	Permit No.	Surety Amount	Surety Company or Bank	DENR Recommendation
Acceptance of Financial Assu	<u>ırance Increase (</u>	for Wharf Resources	s (USA), Inc.:	
Wharf Resources (USA), Inc. Lead, SD	356, 464, & 476	\$669,200	Aspen American Insurance Company	Accept rider to Bond No. SU27832, Aspen American Insurance Company, increasing the bond by \$20,100 to the new amount of \$689,300.

May 2019 Consent.doc

ATTENDANCE SHEET

BOARD OF MINERALS AND ENVIRONMENT MEETING

Location Matthew Training Center Picore, 50 Date 5-15-19

NAME (PLEASE PRINT)	ADDRESS	REPRESENTING
Matt Zietlow	Lead, SD	What Resources
Jason Bromes	Denver, CO	AECOM / Homestake
Mark Tieszen	Lead, SD	Homestake / LAC Minerals
Roberto Hudson	Pierre SD	DENR
Eric Holm	Pierre,5D	DENR
Jeff Byrich	Lead, SP	Barrick
Carrie Justison	Piene SD	DENR
Lilias Jarding	Rapid City, SD	
Bob Mercer	Pierre	Keloland
LMCJBIXKER_	Pilme	DENR
Mart Hicks	Pierra	DENR
Thomas Cline	Pierre SD	DENR-MAM-Config
Kathy Clines	Bujalo SO	Harding County
Melisso Breding	Buffalo, 5D	Harding County
Timothy Magstade	Pietre, SD	DENR
Sarah Mea-hott	Pierre	Forum News Service
AARON TIEMAN	MERRE, SD	SD DENR-WATER RIGHTS
	And the second s	